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Location:

Date of
Construction:

Pregent Owner:
Pregent COccupant

Significance:

Preject Information?

426-430 Weat Larned Street
Detroit, Michigan 48226

USGS Detroit, Hichigan, Quadrangle
UTH Coordinates: 17.330080.4687994

1890. Partially rebuilt 1892
City of Detroit, Hichigan
Vacant

The William Reid & Cempany Bullding is
a rare surviving example of the
commercial architecture of Gordon W.
Lloyd, completed toward the end of his
diatinguiahed career. Lloyd waa a
major dealgner of churches, private
reasidencea, and commercial buildings
in Detroit, with a career extending
from 1861 to the early 1890s. The
ocriginal owner, William Reid, a
preminent Detrcoit merchant in

plate glass trade, used this building
for wholesgaling in 1890-1908,

This documentaticon was undertaken in
May, 1986 in accordance with the
Hemorandum of Agreement between the
City of Detroit, the Adviscry Council
on Hiatorlic Pregservation, and the
Michigan State Hiatoric Presefvation
Officea aa a mitigative measure prior
tc the demolition of the building.

Dr. Charles K. Hyde
Department cf Hiastory
Wayne State Univeraity
Detroit, Michigan 48202
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PART I - HISTORY OF THE WILLIAM REID & COMPANY BUILDING

After a dscsde of slow growth in the 1870s, Detrcit’a
population doubled in the 1880s, from 116,000 in 1880 to nesrly
206,000 by 1890, reflecting its axpanding induatrisl baae. The
commercisl]l districts of Detroit were concentratsd along
Woodward Avenue, the major aouth to north thoroughfare during
the pasat two centuries. The atraetse running psrpendiculasr to
Woodward, particularly near the Detroit River, underwent
asubstantial davelopment beginning in the early 1880a. The arss
of Weat Larnad Street where this building ia aituated, four
blocks from Woodward Avenue, became a prime commercisl location
in the 1880Ca. The aurviving real estate and fire insurance
stlases show a largely undavaloped area in the lata 1870s,

with a few frame bulldings, including barn=a, and many wvacant
loets. By the mid-1890s, this arsa waa almcst entirely filled
with substantial four and five story brick commercisl and
industrisl buildings.l

The davelopment of West Larned was reflected in the resl eatste
values of the two lota where the building stands. In the late
1880a, cone lot sold (in two parcela) for 24,600, but when David
Whitney, Jr. bought the same lot in 1883, he paid =12, 000.
Whitney, & millionsire lumberman who became & major Detroit
landowner and developer, acquired the second lot from Willisnm
Reid in January, 18390, at a coat of £14,000.2 Gordon W.
Llcyd, s prominent Detroit srchitact, tocock cut s building
permit on 10 May 1890 "“to erect a S-story, brick msnufsctory
stora at 118~26 W. Larned, valuation of £38,000."3

Gordon W. Lloyd dominatad Detroit’s architectursl sascene from
the esrly 1860a to the early 1890a. He designed churchesa,
reaidences, and commercial buildings for some of Detroit’a
weslthieat and most preatigioua fsmiliea. Born in Cambridga,
England, in 1832, Lloyd began his career working in the office
of his uncle, a ma)or buildsr and restorer of churches.
Between 1861 and 1873, Lloyd completad a dozen major Gothic-
style churches for various Protestant denominations in Detroit
and outstate Michigan, along with an agqual number of impresaive
private rasidences. Ha designed sevaral caat-iron facade
commarcial buildings from the mid-1870s through the mid-1880s,
then a aarias of Quaen Anne styls residancea in the =sarly and
nid-1880s, before concluding his caraer with a series of
Romsnesque Revival reaildential snd commercisl buildings in the
lste 1880s and early 18490a.
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Lloyd’a Romaneaque Revival commercisl architecture waa fer more
modaest then that precticed by Henry Hobson Richardaon, who had
pioneered the use of this atyle in large commercial buildingsa.
Lloyd uged the Romaneagque when he designed a large seed
warehouse in 1887 for the D.H. Ferry Compeny of Detroit. Hia
uae of that style on the Ferry warehouae, and on the Willianm
Reid Building in 1890, were important atepa in the evolution of
Detroit architecture. The historian W. Hawkina Ferry noted
thet the Reid bhuilding waa "“one of Lloyd’s laat buildings and
shows how far he had gone from the (Second Empire style)
Newbarry Building of only ten yeara earlier." A aymbol of the
traneition to the modern commercial structure, the Reaid
building waa conatructed in the aame year aa Detroit’s first
skyacraper, the ten-atory Hammond Building at Fort and
Griawald. Detroit‘s first all-steel akelaton buildings date
from 1894, From hia Gothic church apirea of mid-century to the
akyacrapera of the 18%90a, Gordon W. Lloyd’s contributions were
etched on Detroit’e skyline.4

William Reid was one of many Canadisns who emigrated to Detroit
in the nineteenth century and developed asuccesaful huainesaas.
Born in 1842 in Mersea, Easex County, Ontario Province, he came
to Detroit in 1856, went back to Canade, but then returned to
Detroit permanently in 1865. Reid started off in the businesasa
of wholeaaling plate glaas and building materiala. He worked
as @ bookkeeper for William Wright & Co. beginning in 1867,
became a partner in the firm of Reid & Hille in 1871, and
finally, on 1 January 1879, he esteblished the firm of William
Reid. He guickly became the leading importer and jobber of
plate gleas and other glaas products in Detreoit and by the
18908, waa one of the largeat glaas wholeasslera in the midwest.
Hias inventory in 1880 included "French and American window
gleasa and plate glasaa, ribbed and rough platea for aky-lights,
cut and enamelled glass, silver plated aash bers, French and
German looking-glaase platea, leed and oil, colera, putty
pointa, glaziers’ diamonda, etc.” Reid’a glass aales totalled
roughly 150,000 in 1880, but by 1891, had increased fivefold.S
His firm occupied a four atory warehouse at 73-75 Weat Lerned
in 1882-1889, immedistely before it moved intoc the building at
124-128 West Larned. Reid maeintained a retail outlet on Easast
Congresa Street by the late 1880a and also eatebliahed a branch
in Grand Rapids by 1891.6
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From the start, Reid’s glass business usad only the western
half of this building, while the Detroit Confectionery and
Fruit Tablet Company occupied the eastern half through 1897.7
According to one early description, the building had an
electric elevator and "an apparatus for moving heavy glaaa on
an off the wagona."” Reid had a total of forty employees,
including clerka, zaleamen, mechanica, and a portar.8

On 3 March 1892, after only about of a year of use, a fire
deatroyed the weatern half, occupied by Reid, with an eatimated
total loas of about 8150,000 of inventory. Reid carried only
215,000 of inaursnce, primarily for hias half of the building.
The way the fire evolved, along with the fire wall separating
the two building aegmenta, combined to minimize loas to the
confectionery company to a mere 82,000 of smoke damsge. Engine
Company No. 12 reaponded to the fire, which started at 10:15
A.M., Four firemen were on the fourth floor when burning floor
joistas on the floorse balow collapaed, the rear wall fell
inward, and they found themselvea on the ground floor covered
with bricka and burning timbera. Their fellow firemen removed
the debria and, miraculously, three of the four had only minor
injuries. Unfortunately, the fourth firemen was killed. The
collapse of the western half of the building put the fire out
and probably aaved the eastarn half aa well.® The rebuilding
of the weatern half accounta for the noticeable differencea

in appearsnce. Gordon Lloyd probably prepared the plana for
the reconatruction, but there ia no evidence that the City of
Detroit imaued 2 new building permit.

From 1890 through 1908, William Reid occupled the weatern half
of the building, known as 124~128 Weat Larned through 1920,
then as 430 West Larned. Reid purchased the weast half of the
building from Dawvid Whitney, Jr., in November, 1896, but ten
years later, the building changed hands again, g8a the reasult of
the bankruptcy of Reid’s firm. A group of Detroit-baséd
truateea, acting on behalf of the Scottish Union & National
Insurance Company, took control of the property.lO This part
of the building hsd a seriea of tenanta, mainly dry goods
warehousing operatora, until Van Wald, Inc. a furniture dealer,
acquired 1t in 1968, The eaatern haslf of the building, known
aa 118-122 Weat Larned through 1920, then a3 428 Weat Larned,
waa the home of the Detroit Confectionery and Fruit Tablet
Company through 1897, waa vacant in 1898-99, and served as

a warehouae for C. Elliot and Co., whole=zale grocara through
1508. A wholesale paper diatributor, Welt and Sona Paper
Company, cccupied the eaatern half of the building from 1509
through 1972, when Van Wald, Inc. ac¢guired it., The later firm
becamae Buckland-Van Wald, Inc., the laast ownera of thia
property prior to purchase by the City of Detroit.ll
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PART II - DESCRIPTION OF THE WILLIAM REID & COMPANY BUILDING

Tha William Reid & Company Building, designad in 1890 by Gordon
W. Liloyd at the requeat of David Whitney, Jr., is a five-story,
partially asymmetrical, wood-~and-messonry satructure. Only the
eaatern section of the building ia the original Llioyd
construction; a fire dastroyed the weatern portion rented by
Raid in March, 1892. Reconastructed afterwarda, the waatern
half ie atyliatically compatible with the original structure on
the eaat, although there are obvioua differencea, such aa tha
addition of & mezzanine on the newer side. The architact of the
re-built weatern building is not known, but it ia possaible that
Gordon Lloyd waa involved. '

Each of the two sections measures 48 feet wide and 122 feet
deep. The facadea of the wesat, north, and eaat are completely
unadorned dark brown brick, with the northern facade having the
only fenestration. The main (south) facadas along Weat Larned is
compoaed of reddish brick and sandatone. In the 1890 building,
Lioyd employed caat iron in the few narrow posts that accent
the window aections on the first floor. The arched windowa on
the fourth floor and fifth levelas and the textured uae of brick
throughout give the structure a decidedly Romaneague guality.
Six flat piers extend from the atreet level to the roofline of
the building, dividing the structure into five bay aactiona -
two on the original eaatern side and three on the waatarn
sagment. The piers are broken at the top of the third atory by
stylized capitals, each of which is linked to the othera by a
atring of small dentils. The columna then continua along the
fourth and fifth levela, ending in an entablature which
faatures dentils and a balustrade.

Lloyd deaigned the bay sections with generoua amounts of window
apace which would allow large amounta of natural light to reach
the interior of the building. Window treatment on the aecond
and third floora conaiat of palra of sashed windowa. 4 single
pair of auch windowa fills each of the three baya on the
weatern half of the building, while two pairs per bay section
are ugsed in the eastern half. 0On the fourth atory, a single
arched window, each subdivided into aix sectiona, occupy each
of the three weatern bays, while two auch windowa are employed
for each of the two eaatern bays. 4nd at the fifth atory, each
of the threa bayas on the western aide haa two modaatly arched
windowa, while each of the two bays on the eaatern aide haa
three. The three easternmost arched windows on the fifth level
waere bricked up in 1948,
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Apart from moldings on the firgt-floor ceiling and cornice, the
intericr of the building ia plainly utilitarian. Deaspite the

' generous use of windowa on the aouth snd north, by modern

atandards the interior would have bean dimly 1lit were
electrical lighting not availabla. The weat and esat walls,
as well aas the party wall dividing the two building segments,
are load~bearing brick maaonry, while the interior atructural
support ayatem ia clearly visibla. On ths second through the
fifth floora, it conalsta of heavy woodan beams and columns,
with columna decreasing in crosa section from 11 X 13 inches on
the second floor to 7 1/4 X 5 1/4 inches on the aixth floor.
Caat iron columna are present only on the firat flecor and in
the basement. The supporting columna are apaced and arranged
in different patterns in the two bullding segments, In the
esatern half, a aingle row of columna extend the length of the
buililding, midwsy between the two brick walls, creating usable
floor apace 23 fest wide on either aide., ©On the weatern aide,
palrs of columns extend the lasngth of the building, creating
three bays 15 feet & Iinches wide. Freight elevatora and
stairwells ars locatad at tha rasar of both aactions of the
building. A stailrwell locatsd at ths front of thas western hslf
features a skylight. The flat roof of the entire building
slopas toward tha rasar of tha structurs; ths cellings on tha
fifth floor are 15 feet 8 inchea high on the Larned alde and
only 8 feet 8 inchas high st the rear of the building.
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